Annual Report

2006
Year ended March 31, 2006

Combi makes your daily life more enjoyable and comfortable
as we aim at bringing you a creative and heartwarming
lifestyle. A shortening of the word “combination”,
which itself refers to the combination of mother and child,
Combi provides products and services that establish
wholesome environments to support the healthy growth
of infants.
With our eyes on the global community, we are rapidly
expanding from our core focus on mothers and children
into the overall lifestyles of families. We also plan a global
expansion of our activities and efforts in the area of
“Innovative Brand”, “Quality”, and “Efficient Organization
and Employees”.
Based upon our corporate standpoint as a partner supporting
baby care givers and promoting the wonderful experience
of baby care, Combi will take full advantage of stateof-the-art advances and information technologies to
improve our business operations as well as our products.
We believe that our activities in various areas will bring the
world a more enjoyable and comfortable lifestyle.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
Statements contained in this report regarding the plans, projections and
strategies of the Combi Corporation and its subsidiaries and affiliates that
comprise the Combi Group (hereinafter “Combi”) that are not historical fact
constitute forward-looking statements on future financial results. As such, they
are based on data that are obtainable at the time of announcement in
compliance with Combi’s management policies and certain premises that are
deemed reasonable by Combi. Hence, actual results may differ in some cases
from these forward-looking statements due to changes in various factors,
including–but not limited to–economic conditions in principal markets, product
and service demand trends, and currency exchange rates fluctuations.
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Brand Management

Ever since its foundation in 1957, Combi has moved forward with corporate activities
aimed at establishing a brand that is capable of winning consumer confidence.
Convinced that the Combi brand is one of our important management resources, we
established a brand platform (composed of vision, mission and value) when we
adopted the new logo in 2002 and have since been promoting brand management
on a company-wide basis.

The new Combi logo expresses
our corporate standpoint as
a partner supporting baby carers and promoting the
wonderful experience of baby care.
It also communicates
the pleasure and excitement of baby care and our high
standards of quality, reliability and sophistication.
Brand Vision
The realizing of a Combi brand world
based on the concept of Value.

To create a world where
people can enjoy and feel happy
about baby care.

Brand Mission

Brand Value

The role which the Combi brand must
fulfill in order to realize its Vision.

The value which the Combi brand promises and
delivers to customers so that Combi can
accomplish its Mission.

To share the joy of baby care
with everyone.

Functional value
Combi baby products are
“Helping Hands” to support those
who take part in baby care.
Emotional value
A Mother’s (baby carer’s) Natural
Smile.

Incorporating our mind into the brand
We endeavor to have all employees share the same brand vision, through such initiatives
as hosting an annual Brand Day and distributing the Brand Book, and we conduct
activities to help attract all the stakeholders, including the customers, shareholders and
employees, to become Combi’s fans.
These efforts at enhancing brand value also support the development of products
whose foremost priority lies in user convenience and safety.
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To Our Shareholders

Hiromasa Matsuura
President and CEO

Acting as a partner in raising babies, the Combi Group constantly offers parents the most innovative products in the field.
Working from the point of view of users, our proprietary planning and development capabilities are the core strength of the
Combi Group. As the maker of a trusted line of baby care products and toys, we are developing our business on a global scale.
By achieving steady progress in our field, we aim to further solidify Combi’s market position as an innovative brand.
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Q

Would you give us your impressions of the business climate and Combi’s performance in the
fiscal year ended March 2006?

A

The Japanese market still faces a declining birthrate issue, but personal consumption rebounded
during the fiscal year on the strength of a recovery in the economy. Despite this improvement in
conditions, market entrances by low-priced foreign products in the baby care product and toy
market resulted in further deterioration in prices. Amid these circumstances, business conditions
became even more challenging in our baby care business.
It was a different story in our child wear business. Expanding our Internet sales while
introducing new brands, we steadily expanded sales. Overseas as well, our fine-tuned sales efforts
in Asia were successful, boosting our sales and brand recognition substantially.
Overall, consolidated net sales declined to ¥28,281 million due to the sluggish baby care
business. Despite this contraction in sales, our share of the domestic market remained high.
In terms of profitability, we have unfortunately posted losses since the fiscal year ended March
1998. The lack of profits from expanded sales of our operations in China and North America and
an unexpected loss due to water damage in a development section of our Techno-Center
contributed to the loss.

On the bright side, the write offs of inventory and the elimination of unprofitable sales channels
that took place in North America and China over the fiscal year under review have primed both
these regions to contribute greater profits in the current fiscal year. The domestic baby care market
is expected to remain difficult, but our child wear business and other businesses are developing
steadily. In the fiscal year ahead, we will target achieving profits in our domestic market and firm
expansion in our overseas businesses.

Consolidated Financial Highlights
Combi Corporation and its Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2005

2006

2006

¥ 30,149
1,640
1,513

¥ 28,281)
(868)

$ 240,758)
(2,633)
(7,391)

¥ 16,776
28,516

¥ 16,087)
27,385)

$ 136,951)
233,124)

¥ 84.30
934.35
20.00

¥ (48.36)
896.00)
10.00)

$ (0.41)

Fiscal Year
Net sales ...................................................................................
Operating income ....................................................................
Net income for the fiscal year ................................................

(309)

As at the End of the Fiscal Year
Total shareholders’ equity ......................................................
Total assets ..............................................................................

Per Share Data
Net income for the year ..........................................................
Total shareholders’ equity ......................................................
Dividends paid .........................................................................

7.62)
0.08)

Notes:
1. Figures for net income per share have been computed based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the fiscal year.
2. Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥117.47 as of March 31, 2006.
3. The figures provided for in the above summary and the financial statements (including Notes) available in this annual report are in principle indicated in
millions of yen or thousands of U.S. dollars after omitting amounts below one million and one thousand, respectively.

Net Sales

Total Assets

(Millions of yen)

40,000

30,000

(Millions of yen)
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30,149
28,281
28,571 29,643 28,824
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Breakdown by Business Segment of Net Sales
(2006)
Health Care Products

28,516
27,296 27,116 26,430

2002

2003

2004

27,385

2005

2006

Breakdown by Business Segment of Net Sales
(2007 Forecast)
Health Care Products

10.6%

10.0%

▲

89.4%

Baby Care Products and Toys

In future, Combi will focus on
its baby care products business

90.0%

Baby Care Products and Toys
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Q

Can you please explain your 2010 Vision and medium-term management plan?

A

Our Group strategies and long-term corporate vision, 2010 Vision, hinge on the following issues:
• Establishing World Leadership as the Top “Innovative” Brand
• Becoming the Worldwide Leader in Quality
• Creating the World’s Most Efficient Organization and Employees
Working on improvement in three areas, we aim to build ourselves into a global company based on
our core baby care business.

In view of the falling birthrate, we cannot expect sharp
growth in the domestic baby care market. However, in the
past we have been able to expand market share and
increase sales of items despite declining birthrates. Acting
as a partner in developing our merchandise from the point
of view of our end users, we have brought many
convenient and comfortable products for raising babies to
market. Some examples include our Good Design Award
winning baby soft carrier and the patented Wrap Crotch
and Wrap Compact. We will continue to develop highly
original quality merchandise, build recognition of Combi
as an innovative brand, and stabilize domestic sales. We
will be placing special emphasis on expanding sales in the
child wear business and our international business, which
has high growth potential over the long term. To stimulate
our organization, we conducted a major revision of our
personnel allocations in spring 2006.
As part of our strategy of being selective and focused
in allocation of resources, we recently sold our wholly
owned subsidiary Combi Wellness Corporation, which
had been responsible for our fitness and healthcare
business, to Konami Corporation. We have always
developed our business around the baby care product
and toy business, aspiring to be an enterprise that
supports a combination of mothers and babies. In future,
we intend to more clearly pursue that ambition and focus
our resources accordingly. The Combi Group’s brand
vision is to create a world where people can enjoy and
feel happy about baby care. Propelled by that vision, we
intend to expand our business by supporting baby care in
terms of hardware and software.
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Good Design
Award Logo
Baby Soft Carrier
Ninna Nanna T-95

Wrap Crotch
Patent Number: 3604350

Q

What issues are you addressing under your corporate social responsibility program?

A

Our Group is actively involved in environmental issues for the sake of babies and their parents in
order to pass on our irreplaceable environment to future generations. In 1998, we acquired ISO
14001 certification for our Saitama Factory. Since then, we have been steadily adding facilities to
the certification list and recently achieved ISO 14001 certification for all Group facilities in Japan.
We are the first to do so in the domestic baby care product market. In addition, we are also conducting a range of innovative activities, such as developing and supplying the market with environmentally-friendly merchandise.
In our quality control activities, we seek to achieve not only the publicly required standards but
to meet our own much more exacting standards. We are working to further boost our quality for
the future.

Q

What is the outlook for Combi in the fiscal year ahead?

A

Business conditions for the Combi Group will continue to be difficult in the current fiscal year.
Nevertheless, our first goal is to move back into the black. We will pursue cost reductions,
concentrate on development of high-value-added products, and carry out effective promotional
measures linked to sales growth. As one of those measures, we plan to sell a combination
package of a popular baby wear item and a baby care item. Through this new sales technique we
aim to further increase our brand name recognition and use the synergies to expand sales.
Overseas, we will use the business model that has been successful in Asia to further develop
the market in China. Keeping an eye on profitability, we are targeting growth in our overseas sales.
Based on the previous mentioned strategies and measures, we forecast that consolidated net
sales will increase 1.8%, to ¥28.8 billion and net income will amount to ¥260 million.
In meeting the challenges of the future, we look forward to the continued support of our
shareholders.
July 2006

Hiromasa Matsuura
President and CEO
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Combi at a Glance

JUVENILE PRODUCT
BUSINESS

TOY BUSINESS

CHILD WEAR
BUSINESS

Development, production
and marketing of baby care
products

Development, production
and marketing of toys for
infants and toddlers
aged 0 to 3

Development, production
and marketing of baby
wear

Strollers/High chairs
Child car seats/Nursing products
Baby tableware
Skin care products
Baby soft carriers/Baby shoes

Toys for the newborn/Play gym
Rattles and teethers/Training toys
Take-along toys
Intellectual stimulation toys

Baby wear/Maternity wear
Baby underwear/Baby bedding
Bed accessories

The Combi Group’s core
operations, the juvenile product
business functions as a leading
company in the baby care market
of Japan. The business offers a
variety of products customers
can feel confident about using,
including strollers, child car seats,
and high chairs. Combi continues
to maintain a high reputation in
the market, winning Good Design
Awards for its products for three
consecutive years.

This business offers toys ranging
from a baby’s playthings to
educational toys for children from
zero to three years old. The toy
business deals with some
children who are in the same age
bracket as those in the juvenile
product business, and the strong
brand power of our baby care
products has a synergistic effect
on toy sales.

In fall 2000, Combi introduced
its Combi Mini brand, entering
the child wear business.
Over the approximately six
years since entering the market,
annual sales have grown to
about ¥4.0 billion. Using
catalogs and the Internet, the
business sells directly to its
customers. Despite the
declining birthrate in Japan, the
business is maintaining high
growth rates.

●New Products: Ricco W, an
ultra-lightweight and compact
stroller, and Roanju and
Roanju Autoswing, high
chairs that can also be used
as beds indoors.

●The Fabuna wooden toy
series is a new area of
development for the
business. Taking advantage
of the growth in the wooden
toy market, the business is
working to expand sales.

●Combi acquired patents for
Wrap Crotch (2004) and
Wrap Compact (May 2006),
an exceedingly rare event for
child wear products. Combi is
utilizing this strategy of
obtaining patents to further
differentiate its products in
the market.

●The business is also
developing the happy palm
series based on the concept
of stylish baby toys with high
design sense.
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GLOBAL BUSINESS

Marketing in North America

CHILDCARE
ENVIRONMENT
SUPPORT BUSINESS

FUNCTIONAL
FOODS BUSINESS

CombiWith Corporation
Equipment and
environment support
services for going out
with children
Childcare business

Development, production
and marketing of
functional foods

Proposals for baby resting rooms
and playrooms for infants
Washroom facilities
(Baby rests/Diaper changing
stations/Multipurpose beds)
Facility and store-use strollers
Nursery school operations
Daycare and baby-sitting services
Managed by Combi’s
subsidiary, CombiWith
Corporation, the business offers
products, such as Baby Rest
and Diaper Changing Station,
and services to support mothers
and babies as they go out
together. Another of the
business’s core operations is
the operation of nursery daycare
centers under the name of
Combi Plaza.

●Based on its core products,
Diaper Changing Station, for
changing diapers in public
toilets, and Baby Rest, for
holding babies next to
mothers when in the toilet
cubicle, the business plans
and installs baby resting
rooms and playrooms.

Combi USA, Inc.
U.S.A.

Marketing in China

Combi (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
China

Marketing in Taiwan

Combi (Taiwan) Co., Ltd.
Taiwan

Heat killed lactic acid bacteria
“EC-12”
“E. F. Power”
“OXYKINE/GliSODin”
“Hoyactive”
“Collocalia”

Marketing and production control in
Southeast Asia

Combi Asia Limited
Hong Kong

Production

Ningbo Combi Baby Goods
Co., Ltd.
China

Operating in the health-related
domain, the business mainly
develops food product materials
and functional foods. With R&D
at the core, the business
creates highly original materials,
targeting steady growth as a Bto-B business.

●One of the business’s major
developments, Heat killed
lactic acid bacteria EC-12, is
drawing significant attention
in the livestock industry.
Jointly with a major trading
company, Combi is
developing sales of livestock
feed using this biological
material.
●Sales were only on the scale
of a few 100s of millions of
yen, but the business was
profitable in the fiscal year
ended March 2006.

Dong Guan Combi Stroller &
Toys Co., Ltd.
China

Combi’s overseas operations
focus on the Asian and North
American regions. Excluding
Japan, Combi has three sales
companies and two production
companies in Asia. In North
America, the Company has a sales
company.
Sales are growing in both of
Combi’s overseas regions. For
the future, the Company has
positioned these regions as drivers of growth for the Combi
Group and is implementing
strategies accordingly.

●Looking at regional sales,
sales in North America soared
in the fiscal year under review,
increasing 57% year on year.
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J
uvenile product
business
Ever since the start of business in 1961, Combi has identified customer
needs constantly and accurately to offer innovative and safe products
and services. This process began with the Swan Potty in the 1960s
and the Sandra Stroller in the 1970s and continues to this day.
In recent years, Combi has carefully listened to its customers in
introducing progressive products one after the other, such as the Do
kids 5, a multipurpose stroller that offers five functions, including a
baby car seat to a second-phase stroller in one, or the Ricco W stroller
with its ultra-lightweight and compact design.
As an all-round manufacturer of childcare products
Combi provides enjoyable and comfortable
childcare products and services
on which its customers can rely.

Swan Potty
(1960s)

Net Sales
20,000

(Millions of yen)

17,449 17,224
15,000

14,712

10,000

5,000

0
FY 2004 FY 2005 FY 2006
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Sandra Stroller
(1970s)

■Market
Affected by Japan’s low birthrate and a growing population of senior citizens, the
baby care market is decreasing slightly (the annual number of births was about
1.06 million and is on the decline). Amid a growing diversity in lifestyles, the
market has polarized, with low- or high-priced products attracting consumer
interest, but products in the middle price zone are not selling well.
Nevertheless, there has been no remarkable change in the level of expenditure
made by families on each child and,
influenced by the polarization in the
market, consumers are clearly willing to
purchase the most expensive products,
as long as the items offer good value and
quality. Among other trends, Internet
sales have expanded significantly,
strengthening the sales power of juvenile
product retail chain stores.
As a top supplier of baby care
products, the Combi Group is keenly
aware of such consumer trends and
continues to provide customers with
high-value-added, advanced, and
forward-looking products and services.

■Fiscal 2006 Business Activities and Performance

Ricco W Stroller (2006)

Under pressure from the emergence of foreign manufacturers in the
market, lower prices in the market, and intensified competition, sales of
strollers, Combi’s flagship product, declined from the previous fiscal
year.
Although the percentage of babies and infants using child car seats
did not change greatly from the previous year, sales of child car seats
dropped sharply year on year due to an increase in reuse and market
entrances by other companies into the child and juniors car seat
product group.
Conversely, sales jumped substantially for high chairs that can serve
both as a baby bed and as a high chair for indoor use. Sales of the new
multifunctional product Roanju and the launch of Roanju Autoswing,
which features an autoswing function, supported the strong performance.
Among small to medium-size products, Combi’s baby soft carriers
won the Good Design Award for the second consecutive year. The
winner this time was Baby Soft Carrier Ninna Nanna T-95. Our small to
medium-size product group has won good design awards for three
years in a row, and its products are highly regarded by consumers.
Despite this excellent reputation, sales have struggled because large
retailers, drug stores, and other retailers have been reducing their baby
care product shelf space.
Consequently, our juvenile product business generated net sales of
¥14,712 million, decreasing 14.6% from those of the previous fiscal
year.

Roanju (2005)
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Juvenile product business

Combi Town Web site

■Outlook
Marketing from the Customer’s Point of View
Up to the fiscal year under review, the major reasons for the stagnation in the
baby care product market have been price deterioration in the market and our
being caught up in the excessive competition in the market rather than formulating
an independent strategy. In fiscal 2007, we are returning to our roots and
implementing marketing from our customers’ point of view. We will do so by
considering what customers are thinking, what they desire, and how we should
respond.
Specifically, we will take advantage of our Web site Combi Town to
communicate with customers and listen carefully to their opinions and
suggestions. Combi Town is the top childcare site in Japan, with 160 thousand
subscribers.
In other areas, our Life Design Project enlists the aid of mothers raising
children to design a variety of products based on ideas born of practical
experience. We are also heavily promoting the message underlying products
developed in this manner to customers.
Sales Strategy
Amid a rapidly changing market, we have increased the autonomy of the
marketing division to reinforce our marketing from the customer’s point of view
efforts and are actively implementing advertising, media, and store strategies.
Meanwhile, our sales division is strengthening ties with leading retailers and
wholesalers and sales agencies and building our sales network to achieve efficient
sales.
In a major promotional initiative, we are conducting a Plus Idea campaign,
which is offering our hit child wear product Wrap Crotch to first-time purchasers in
Japan of our core baby care products, strollers, child car seats, and high chairs.
As customers buying strollers and baby seats come to know this product as
the “Child wear Combi” and direct mail customers (child wear) come to know it as
the “Juvenile product Combi,” we expect it to promote further market penetration
by the Combi brand and expand sales.
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Toy business
Our toy business offers a wide variety of safe toys, mainly for zero to three
year olds, ranging from a baby’s playthings to educational toys. We
conduct research on the monthly development of children during their early
rapid development stages to use in the product development process. This
research helps us create toys that properly accommodate each growth
stage to promote the intellectual, mental, and emotional growth of children.
Such products as Merry, Play Gym, and Rattle go beyond the ordinary
concept of toys and have earned a strong reputation as baby care
products. To ensure the safety of our toys, we adhere to standards in
excess of Safe Toy standards in the development process.
■Market and Fiscal 2006 Performance

Net Sales (Millions of yen)
2,000
1,883
1,833

1,500

1,451

1,000

500

0
FY 2004 FY 2005 FY 2006

Happy Palm,
Melody Merry
+ Play Gym

The weeding out of weaker companies continued in the toy industry during the
fiscal year as mergers and other corporate reorganizations increased. In addition,
new sales channels, such as consumer electronics chain stores and Internet sales,
expanded. Although there has been some growth in wooden toy sales, the market
continues to contract because of the declining birthrate and graying population.
Amid these circumstances, Combi launched two new toy lines, the “Happy Palm”
series featuring stylish baby toys and the Fabuna wooden toy series.
The happy palm series offers stylish baby toys with high design sense, while
the Fabuna series differentiates Combi from competitors by offering toys made
from a combination of wood and cloth. Not only are Fabuna toys made from
natural materials, they achieve the highest safety standards in their construction.
We added six more items to the highly popular “From Mama” series,
supporting sales growth by this unique product line. The “From Mama” series of
toys are developed based on direct requests from mothers.
Because of the contraction of the market and the late launches of happy palm
and Fabuna, sales of the toy business declined sharply in fiscal 2006. However,
Combi did successfully launch products in what are clearly new segments, which
should provide the key to future growth in the market.
■Outlook for Fiscal 2007 and the Medium Term
Toys are a peripheral market to the baby care market. For that reason, Combi
specializes in baby and education toys—areas where it can leverage its strengths.
Focusing on developing toy series with a clear concept, such as happy palm,
Fabuna, and From Mama, we will also cultivate new sales routes, including
collaborating with companies from other business sectors.
As a new product, we have acquired the commercialization rights for the
animation characters of Studio Ghibli. We intend to develop these characters into
a new business domain.
For the overall business, we will also work to increase our return on sales
through greater operating efficiency. Toward this goal, we will aim to maintain
prices and revise and reduce the number of our cooperative manufacturers.

Fabuna,
Katakata Baby Trolly
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Child wear business
Based on its fundamental concept of introducing child wear that brightens the
smile on a baby’s face, Combi established the Combi Mini brand in fall 2000
and entered the child wear market mainly through catalog shopping. Combi’s
functional child wear, represented by the unconventional Wrap Crotch, and its
reasonable pricing have won the hearts of customers. As a result, the Combi
Mini brand has established itself well in the child wear industry, which has been
known for its lack of key brands. We acquired patents for our core production
Wrap Crotch in October 2004 and our new version Wrap Compact in May
2006. Being awarded a patent is an extremely rare event in the child wear
industry, and our sales have grown on the strength of those patents.
Our Ribbon Casket line has also performed well. A new child wear brand
introduced in December 2004, Ribbon Casket features the designs of
entertainment celebrity Chiaki (Designer name Chiaki Fujimoto).
Overall, sales of the child wear business amounted to ¥3.8 billion in fiscal
2006, expanding favorably.

Net Sales
5,000

(Millions of yen)

4,000

3,841
3,565

3,000

3,005

2,000

1,000

0
FY 2004 FY 2005 FY 2006
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■Market
According to our research, the overall size of the apparel market for children up to
12 years of age is estimated to be ¥720 billion, of which clothes for infants and
toddlers between the ages of zero and three account for ¥125 billion and for
newborns only account for ¥30 billion. Competition has heightened in the child
wear industry, with market entrances by brand name manufacturers and the
emergence of category killer discount stores further polarizing the market. As a
result, the top-selling brand changes frequently.
In these circumstances, maintaining market share has been extremely difficult.
Our development of products with superior functional designs and
our strength in direct sales have been the key to success.
Even amid a falling birthrate, Combi has achieved
favorable sales.
■Fiscal 2006 Business Activities and Performance
During fiscal 2006, we again took advantage of Wrap
Crotch’s patent to run a Wrap Crotch sales campaign.
In April 2006, Wrap Compact also acquired a patent and
Combi further expanded the Wrap Family series. Sales of
Ribbon Casket child wear designed by entertainment celebrity
Chiaki were also favorable.
Many of our customers patronize the Combi brand because
we launch products that suit their functional needs and design
preferences in a timely fashion each season. As a result of our
efforts, the MelMama Club, a membership organization of Combi
Mini, had 430 thousand registered members at March 31, 2006,
compared with 320 thousand at the end of the previous fiscal year.
Reflecting this growth, sales of the child wear business climbed to
¥3.8 billion.

Wrap Crotch

■Fiscal 2007 and Medium-Term Projections
During fiscal 2006, 50% of orders were received via the Internet and
mobile phone sites. In fiscal 2007, we will aim to increase e-commerce
orders and further improve our operating efficiency. We will be targeting
these goals by strengthening our information delivery through the My Page
service introduced on our Web site in April 2006 and other measures and by
expanding and upgrading our services.
In the current fiscal year, Combi is taking its baby wear business to
another level, shifting to a comprehensive baby care brand image by launching the
Combi Mini brand’s high chairs and other products. Looking forward, we will
endeavor to broaden our approaches to our business targets and expand from a
baby wear business to a comprehensive direct marketing business. These efforts
will include enlarging our baby care products and such new categories as
sleeping interior products. Through these initiatives we aim to achieve the further
market penetration of the Combi Mini brand.
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C
hildcare environment
support business
We initiated our childcare environment support business with the objective of
creating products that would assist mothers and their babies outside the home.
Today, we offer both the product (hardware) and the related support for
children (software), focusing on two key segments: the support business for
infant care installations and the nursery business. Baby Rest, a baby rest for
infants and toddlers that initially was equipped only in women’s rest rooms, is
now also commonly available in men’s rest rooms. As more mothers with small
children enter the workforce, the number of children on the waiting list to enter
nursery daycare centers has increased, becoming a major social issue.
The regionally authorized high-quality nurseries operated by CombiWith are
highly regarded throughout this field for their contribution to solving this issue.

Net Sales
3,000

(Millions of yen)

2,090
2,000

1,864

■Market
As part of the Japanese government’s measures to halt the falling birthrate,
various measures for next-generation rearing support are currently being
implemented or considered. The diverse range of measures cover a review of
work codes in Japanese companies, regional childcare support, social insurance,
and education. Some concrete measures have already been implemented, such
as increasing nursery services, including private-sector services, to reduce the
waiting list for nursery schools to zero. To improve child-raising environments in
the corporate world, companies are being required to change their policies and
state them in their codes of behavior. Among other measures, regional and
municipal governments, companies, and commercial businesses are setting up
their own nurseries within their facilities. We positively view these developments as
wind in the sails of our nursery business.

1,444

1,000

0
FY 2004 FY 2005 FY 2006

Combi Plaza Nursery

■Fiscal 2006 Business Activities and Performance
Against the backdrop of the government’s measures, it is becoming common for
commercial businesses to have baby resting rooms, playrooms, and baby holders
in restrooms to support people with babies.
In the support business for infant care installations, we have been promoting
the use of Diaper Changing Stations at public restrooms, Baby Rest to allow
parents to keep their babies with them in the toilet, and baby resting rooms and
playrooms for infants. As a result of these efforts, these products are becoming
popular in new and existing facilities.
In nursery business, we are expanding our software (services) for people
rearing children, especially nursery, babysitter, and daycare services.
As one of the measures being taken to expand nursery and daycare services,
the government is hoping that in addition to the traditional state-operated and
social services–operated nurseries and daycare centers, the private sector will
enter the market. Of the 14 nursery daycare centers operated by CombiWith as of
the end of the fiscal year under review, both of the two new nursery daycare
centers started up in spring 2005 are public daycare centers operated by
CombiWith. These two facilities have received high marks from local authorities.
■Prospects for Fiscal 2007

Diaper Changing Station
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To remove barriers against child rearing that currently exist in commercial and
other facilities, Combi will actively develop new products while aiming to
strengthen its sales organization to promote sales growth.
In our nursery business, we will continue to offer high-quality child-rearing
services and further develop the market for daycare services.

F
unctional foods
business
Based on our concept of supporting healthy living for all family members,
we offer recommendations on foods, the basis of wholesome living.
Combi works together with universities and research institutes to conduct
research on immunity enhancement, anti-oxidation and anti-aging aimed at
the development and sales of food ingredients and functional foods based
on scientific data.
■ Market
As demonstrated by such words as metabolic syndrome (multiple lifestyle related
diseases) people are more aware of health today. The overall health food market is
expanding, and there is plenty of room for further growth driven by effective new
product planning. Consequently, there have been back-to-back entrances into the
market by new companies, creating a state of extreme competition. At the same
time, there are signs that the market is about to undergo a major structural
change, as it is being placed under a tighter regulatory framework by
amendments to food-related laws and regulations, including the Health Promotion
Law and the Food Sanitation Law.
Net Sales
500

(Millions of yen)

400
345
300

273
245

200

100

0
FY 2004 FY 2005 FY 2006

■ Fiscal 2006 Business Activities and Performance
Heat killed lactic acid bacteria EC-12, which has been well analyzed and shown
to be very effective in improving intestinal condition and in protecting against
infection, is now being used as an additive not only in health foods but also in
general foods. We also have been selling EC-12 for use in stock feed since the
previous fiscal year. As a result of stockbreeding that depends heavily on
antibiotics, an increasing number of livestock now carry drug-resistant bacteria
that threaten food and related environmental safety. By using immune stimulating
lactic acid bacteria EC-12 in their livestock feed, breeders now have one potential
way of conducting antibiotic-free stockbreeding. As a result, sales to major feed
suppliers are steadily increasing.
OXYKINE / GliSODin has been proven to be highly effective in scavenging free
radical oxygen, restraining cancer metastases, remedying diabetic complications, and
restraining rheumatoid arthritis. It is also being used as an active material for antioxidative
food products and as an internal cosmetic that is taken to control aging of the skin.
During the fiscal year under review, despite the small scale of its sales, the functional
foods business did register profits. In future, we intend to target steady expansion by
researching and developing new materials and by developing new sales channels.
■Medium-Term Projections

OXYKINE

EC-12

Combi outperforms its competitors by using highly original methods to develop
the functional foods business and by insisting that all materials used be deemed
safe based on scientific evidence.
Today’s health food market continues to expand, reflecting an environment marked
by growing public interest in wholesome living. Building on that trend and guided by our
concept of maintaining healthy lifestyles for all family members, we will continue to
supply products that people feel are safe and can use with peace of mind.
The functional foods business is still in a development stage. Continuing to
strictly adhere to our policies, we will aim for steady sales growth by pursuing our
goal of being a highly original and high-value-added business. In doing so, we will
further develop original equipment manufacturer (OEM) products and aggressively
propose applications of our products for general foods.
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■Sales by Geographical Area

Global Business Development

(Millions of yen)
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Activities in Fiscal 2006

Combi (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Dong Guan Combi
Stroller & Toys Co., Ltd.

Ningbo Combi Baby Goods Co., Ltd.
Combi (Taiwan) Co., Ltd.
Combi Asia Limited

In the Asian region, our wholly owned subsidiary Combi Asia Limited acts as the regional
headquarters. The company is responsible for all of the regional production bases of the
Group and for regional sales.
Sales in the Asian region expanded in fiscal 2006, especially those of Combi Taiwan Co.,
Ltd., supported by an improved brand image for Combi products. During the fiscal year, we
expanded and improved our medium- to high-priced product groups, using the larger
selection of products to set up Combi corners in stores and strengthen our product displays.
In China, our sales activities centered on Combi (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. We achieved sales
growth in the region by reorganizing our sales channels and revising the items being offered
in the market.

Actions for Fiscal 2007
■China
Under a new management team, operations in China will be striving for greater efficiency
and the firm establishment of measures to emphasize profitability. For these purposes, we
will be further stepping up our efforts to adjust the product mix, reorganize sales channels,
and achieve market penetration with our brand.
■Taiwan
Continuing to give high priority to earnings, we will seek to further cultivate the market,
including directly approaching consumers.
■Hong Kong
Taking advantage of the special features of small-scale markets, we are using Hong Kong
as a trial market for a variety of marketing methods to develop suitable sales promotion
systems for the region. In addition, we are working to increase brand awareness throughout
the market to enable us to use Hong Kong as a showcase for the China market.

Sei Kasai
Combi Asia Limited
Chairman
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Combi (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Marketing in China

Ningbo Combi Baby Goods Co., Ltd. Dong Guan Combi Stroller & Toys
Co., Ltd.
Production
Production

Combi Asia Limited

Combi (Taiwan) Co., Ltd.

Marketing and production control
in Southeast Asia

Marketing in Taiwan

■Sales by Geographical Area
(Millions of yen)
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Activities in Fiscal 2006
Combi USA, Inc.

Efforts to review our distribution channels and to supply products suitable for our sales
network resulted in North American sales jumping 57%, to approximately US$14 million.
Looking at product categories, sales of travel systems, our core U.S. product,
contributed strongly to regional sales growth. Travel systems are combination stroller and
baby car seats. In addition, we replaced our Europe-made car seats with ones made in
China, achieving significant cost reductions.
Consumers in this market are beginning to recognize the unique fusion of
properties—lightweight, compact, and high quality—in Combi strollers. This growing
awareness supported significant sales growth in fiscal 2006.
Nevertheless, our operations in the region posted a loss in the fiscal year under
review. Contributing factors included various items related to U.S. accounting principles,
such as prior fiscal year write offs of inventories, valuation losses, and reserves for
advance payments of finance leases for fiscal 2007. On the other hand, with the clearing
of these items, our North American operations will be able to make a fresh start in fiscal
2007.

Actions for Fiscal 2007
■Expand profitable sales to specialist stores
To achieve stable profit levels, we will strengthen our sales activities targeting specialist
stores that sales high-value-added items and medium-sized to small chain stores.

Combi USA, Inc.
Marketing in North America

■Implement detailed and finely tuned sales activities for individual sales channels
We will strengthen Web marketing by improving support for retail stores and by
upgrading the Combi USA, Inc., Web site to be used in promoting sales to consumers.
We will also aim to build brand value by placing our products in stores that sell mediumto high-priced merchandise.
■Concerted efforts by Group to develop products
We will become sensitive to changing trends in the market by strengthening our
merchandising and will further reinforce our collaboration with the Combi head office.
Leveraging the overall power of the Group’s development promotion structure, we will
make all-out efforts to develop products.
■Establish a reputation for Combi as a medium-to high-priced brand
Seeking to further boost the value of the Combi brand, we will deal separately with
different sales channels. In the medium term, we plan to expand our product lines and
establish Combi as a comprehensive manufacturer of baby care products in the mediumto high-priced.
■Place thorough emphasis on profitability and implement strict budget management
By powerfully and thoroughly implementing these measures, we expect to move back
into the black in fiscal 2007.
Note: Combi's international subsidiaries have fiscal years running from
January to December. Hence, fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2007 stand
for the actual years 2005 and 2006.

Rob Conely
Combi USA, Inc
Director President
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Environmental Activity

Combi’s Environmental Policy
Combi established its “Environmental Policy” in October 2004. Its “Basic Philosophy” is
for Combi as an enterprise to create healthy and affluent family lifestyles, to strive to
harmonize itself with the natural environment in the course of all of its business activities,
and to contribute to the handover of the priceless global environment to future
generations. In order to realize these objectives, we uphold “Action Guidelines”, which
are made up of five articles.

Groundbreaker in the Baby Care Industry
In 1998, Combi acquired ISO 14001 certification at its Saitama Factory, the first plant to
be so certified in Japan’s baby care industry. Since then, Combi has led the industry in
efforts to protect the global environment. Subsequently, as the Company spread this
know-how across its other offices and Group companies, CombiWith Corporation,
Minami-Urawa Techno-Center, and obtained ISO 14001 certification in 2000, 2002,
respectively. Combi also offers its business partners consulting services on the
acquisition of this certification.

Another First in the Baby Care Industry
Combi Group ISO 14001
Certification
December 1998

Saitama Factory
(First in baby care industry)

December 2000

CombiWith Corp.

March 2002

Minami-Urawa Techno-Center

In December 2005, Combi achieved consolidated ISO 14001 certification of its
domestic sites, another first in the baby care industry. With the aim of realizing our
Environmental Policy, we will continue to make consistent efforts to reduce
environmental risks, encompassing all processes, including development, production,
and logistics.

Environmental Policy
● Basic Philosophy ●

December 2005

Combi Corp. (Consolidated
certification for Combi Group
companies in Japan)

Fall 2006

CombiWith Corp.
Combi Plaza Nursery Daycare
Center (10 facilities)
Combi Group continues to
expand scope of certification.

Combi’s Environmental
Action Symbol
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Based on its corporate stance of being a partner that supports baby
care givers and promoting the wonderful experience of baby care,
Combi, as an enterprise creating healthy and affluent family lifestyles,
will strive to harmonize with the natural environment in the course of
all of its business activities and contribute to the handover of the
priceless global environment to future generations.
● Action Guidelines ●
1. We will verify the environmental impact of all of our business activities,
encompassing development, production, logistics, and sales and will ensure
continuous improvements.
2. We will perform product assessments and will endeavor to offer
environmentally-friendly and safe products.
3. We will conduct environmental education and training, and each and every
one of us at every workplace will strive to promote resource saving and
energy conservation.
4. We will comply with environmental laws and regulations and will act as a
good corporate citizen.
5. We will disclose our environmental initiatives in a proper manner and will
endeavor to maintain favorable communication with society.
October 19, 2004
Hiromasa Matsuura, President

Combi’s Environmentally-Friendly Products
We have established our own environmentally-friendly product approval standard that
takes into account conservation of natural resources, longevity, and the use of
environmentally-friendly materials. Combi products that meet this standard are granted
our own Combi Eco Label and publicized.
Product Details

Atopi-Mate medicinal
baby body soap
(Refill pack)

Atopi-Mate medicinal
baby shampoo
(Refill pack)

Product Name:
Prime Kids Plus Protect EG/S

Environmental Impact:
Longevity, environmentally-friendly
materials, natural resource conservation

Environmental
Impact

Refillable containers

Natural resources

Recycling used
cooking oil as soap

Recycling

Combi
baby diaper soap
(Refill pack)

Combi
baby diaper soap power

Environmental Impact Category:
Longevity, reduced use of harmful
substances, contents displayed,
part-assembly design

Environmental
Impact Category

Major Environmental Themes in Fiscal 2007
Our environmental activities approach environmental issues from all aspects—product
development, production, logistics, distribution, sales, and administration. Our goals are
to reduce the environmental impact of our business and to daily focus on the following
34 items linked to our operations.
Administration

Functional
foods

Sales

Production &
logistics

Supply safe,
environmentallyfriendly products

Major Action Themes

Development

Environmental
Policy

Child Wear

Baby Toys

Develop environmentally-friendly products
and packaging
Conduct environmentally-friendly marketing
Business paper Reduce number of copies
Reduce industrial waste

Waste
Pursue natural
resource and
energy conservation

Electricity

Reduce product waste and
return ratios
Reduce use of electric power

Administration Pursue reform of
reform
administration methods

Comply with
regulations
Combi Eco Label
(Eco Label Type Ⅱ)

Communication
with the community

Prepare for disasters and strengthen crisis
management
Practice thorough quality control
Publicize environmental activities
Consider implementing environmental
accounting
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FINANCIAL SECTION
Consolidated 5-Year Summary
Combi Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Years ended March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2006

¥28,571

¥29,643

¥28,824

¥30,149

¥28,281

$240,758

Cost of sales

16,011

16,128

15,473

16,299

16,329

139,012

Gross profit

12,559

13,514

13,351

13,850

11,952

101,745

10,437

11,480

11,791

12,209

12,261

104,379

2,122

2,034

1,559

1,640

(309)

(2,633)

605

877

861

1,513

(868)

(7,391)

¥15,379

¥15,610

¥15,723

¥16,776

¥16,087

$136,951

27,296

27,116

26,430

28,516

27,385

233,124

¥ 33.71

¥ 47.80

¥ 47.18

¥ 84.30

¥ (48.36)

856.42

868.23

874.87

934.35

896.00

7.62

17.00

25.00

20.00

20.00

10.00

0.08

¥25,372

¥26,589

¥25,604

¥27,009

¥25,275

$215,161

3,198

3,053

3,220

3,140

3,006

25,596

¥28,571

¥29,643

¥28,824

¥30,149

¥28,281

$240,758

¥26,890

¥27,889

¥26,826

¥27,750

¥25,219

$214,692

Asia

812

912

1,318

1,426

1,532

13,046

North America

867

841

679

972

1,529

13,019

¥28,571

¥29,643

¥28,824

¥30,149

¥28,281

$240,758

Fiscal Year
Net sales

Selling, general and
administrative expense
Operating income
Net income

As at the End of the Fiscal Year
Total shareholders’ equity
Total assets

Per share data (yen and U.S. dollars)
Net income
Total shareholders’ equity
Dividends paid

$

(0.41)

Sales by business segment
Baby Care Products and Toys
Health Care Products
Total

Sales by geographical segment
(Excluding intersegment sales)
Japan

Total

Notes: 1. Figures for per share data have been computed based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the fiscal year.
2. Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥117.47 as of March 31, 2006.

The figures provided for in the above summary and the financial statements (including Notes) available in this annual report are in principle indicated
in millions of yen or thousands of U.S. dollars after omitting amounts below one million and one thousand, respectively.
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Financial Review

Performance
In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, the stalled
Japanese economy began to recover. An increase in
private-sector capital investment and improvements in
corporate performances and in labor conditions supported this economic upswing, which, in turn, encouraged strong personal consumption.
Overseas, there were some concerns over the negative impact on the U.S. economy of the oil price hikes
and major hurricane damage, but the economy
remained buoyant. Elsewhere, the high level of investment in the Asian region continued, with China again
posting remarkable growth.
Amid these circumstances, the Combi Group endeavored to develop, sell, and provide high-value-added
and innovative baby care products and services, while
also focusing on cost reductions. In the core juvenile
product and toys businesses, the declining birthrate,
changes in consumer preferences, and changes in
retail pricing policies resulted in sales performance
falling below that of the previous fiscal year.
In Japan, the child car seat market was strongly
affected by a revision in retail prices, causing sales and
margins to drop significantly compared with the previous fiscal year. To try and make up the difference,
Combi introduced Cocot Compact W, a stroller that
can be used comfortably with babies from one month
to 24 months old and is compact and collapsible for
easy storage. Despite these efforts, the severe price
competition with other companies pushed our sales
and profits below last year’s levels.
On the other hand, our child wear business, which is
primarily direct mail operations, entered its sixth year
of business with another sales growth performance.
The functionality and design sense of our products as
represented by Wrap Crotch continue to earn the
strong support of consumers.
Regionally, we greatly expanded our sales channels
in North America, achieving a substantial increase in
sales compared with the previous fiscal year. In the
final analysis, however, these operations registered a
loss approximately the same as in the previous fiscal
year because of valuation losses on accumulated
inventories.
In the Asian region, sales our Chinese subsidiary
expanded along with the growth in sales of our U.S.
sales subsidiary because of its increased supply of

baby strollers to the U.S. market. On the other hand,
profits declined because of the increase in the
allowance for doubtful accounts for sales receivables
and evaluation losses on inventories.
Our fitness business sales also declined year on
year because of intensified competition and less construction of large-scale fitness facilities in Japan.
Meanwhile, in the healthcare business, the stricter eligibility standards for nursing services under the national
health insurance plan translated into difficult marketing
conditions for expensive nursing equipment, such as
portable toilets. Our voluntary recall of Carry
Throughne (the cart for elderly people) also contributed
to a decline in sales of our healthcare business. On a
more positive note, our functional foods business
expanded sales of lactic acid bacteria and other foodstuffs, posting an overall profit for the fiscal year as
well.
On May 31, 2006, Konami Corporation acquired the
outstanding shares of Combi’s wholly owned subsidiary Combi Wellness Corporation, which had been
responsible for our fitness and healthcare business.
This had no affect on our performance or financial
condition in the fiscal year under review.
Consequently, for the consolidated fiscal year under
review, net sales declined 6.2% year on year, to
¥28,281 million. The Company registered a loss of
¥868 million for the fiscal year.
Cash Flows
Cash and cash equivalents for the consolidated fiscal
year under review (hereafter referred to as “cash”)
totaled ¥5,438 million, up ¥770 million from a year earlier.
Net cash provided by operating activities amounted
to ¥741 million. The main factors were a loss before
income taxes of ¥641 million, depreciation/amortization of ¥712 million, a decrease in trade receivables of
¥939 million, and a decrease in inventories of ¥373
million.
Net cash used in investment activities totaled ¥112
billion. This result can be mainly attributed to ¥587 million in payments for purchase of tangible fixed assets
being partially offset by a ¥471 million net increase in
time deposits.
Net cash used in financing activities amounted to
¥345 million. Cash dividends of ¥270 billion were the
principal component of cash flow.
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Main Financial Index

Net Sales/Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Sales Ratio
Consolidated

(Millions of yen/%)

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

Operating income

¥2,122

¥2,034

¥1,559

¥1,640

¥(309)

Operating margin

7.5%

6.9%

5.4%

5.4%

(1.1)%

Non-Consolidated

Consolidated

–309

–1.1

Non-Consolidated

02 03 04 05 06

Operating income

¥1,878

¥2,168

¥1,188

¥1,182

¥(433)

Operating margin

7.3%

8.4%

4.9%

4.8%

(1.9)%

–433

–1.9

02 03 04 05 06

Return on Equity
Consolidated

Non-Consolidated

(%)

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

Consolidated

4.0

5.7

5.5

9.3

(5.3)

Non-Consolidated

3.6

7.7

5.4

0.9

(5.3)
–5.3

02 03 04 05 06

–5.3

02 03 04 05 06

Earnings per Share
Consolidated

Non-Consolidated

(Yen)

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

Consolidated

33.71

47.80

47.18

84.30

(48.36)

Non-Consolidated

26.93

57.82

42.34

7.25

(40.32)

–48.36

02 03 04 05 06

–40.32

02 03 04 05 06

Book Value per Share
Consolidated

Non-Consolidated

896.00

(Yen)

737.75

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

Consolidated

856.42

868.23

874.87

934.35

896.00

Non-Consolidated

748.65

784.07

803.51

790.67

737.75

02 03 04 05 06
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02 03 04 05 06

Capital Ratio
Consolidated

Non-Consolidated

(%)

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

Consolidated

56.3

57.6

59.5

58.8

58.7

Non-Consolidated

56.7

59.2

61.9

59.3

58.9

58.7

58.9

02 03 04 05 06

02 03 04 05 06

Dividend Payout Ratio
Non-Consolidated
(%)

Non-Consolidated

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

63.1

43.2

47.2

276.0

—

02 03 04 05 06

Price-to-Earnings Ratio (PER)
Consolidated
(Times)

Consolidated

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

15.6

15.2

16.0

9.7

—

02 03 04 05 06

Price-to-Book-Value Ratio (PBR)
Consolidated
(Times)

Consolidated

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

0.6

0.8

0.9

0.9

0.8

0.8

02 03 04 05 06
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Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Combi Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries

March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2005

2006

2006

¥20,470

¥19,105

$162,642

Cash and deposits

5,112

5,424

46,177

Accounts and notes receivable

8,007

7,280

61,978

Marketable securities

1,057

933

7,949

Inventories

4,818

4,619

39,327

Deferred tax assets

645

136

1,165

Other current assets

874

823

7,007

(46)

(113)

(962)

Fixed Assets:

8,045

8,279

70,481

Tangible fixed assets:

5,859

5,768

49,107

2,272

2,250

19,161

Machinery and equipment

251

259

2,205

Molds

211

224

1,908

2,786

2,740

23,332

70

21

183

Other fixed assets

266

272

2,316

Intangible fixed assets

665

580

4,943

1,521

1,930

16,430

974

966

8,228

2

426

3,630

Other investments

683

549

4,679

Allowance for doubtful accounts

(139)

(12)

(108)

¥28,516

¥27,385

$233,124

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Buildings and structures

Land
Construction in progress

Investment and other assets:
Investment in securities
Deferred tax assets

Total Assets

Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥117.47 as of March 31, 2006.

The above Consolidated Balance Sheets as well as financial statements (including Notes) in this annual report have not been audited
by an independent certified accountant.
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Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2005

2006

2006

¥ 7,727

¥ 7,317

$ 62,289

Accounts and notes payable

4,159

3,587

30,539

Short-term bank loans

1,230

1,296

11,036

Accrued expenses

1,466

1,508

12,841

51

49

424

Accrued bonuses to employees

378

210

1,788

Other current liabilities

439

664

5,659

Long-Term Liabilities:

3,984

3,928

33,444

Bonds

3,000

3,000

25,538

Deferred tax liabilities

79

88

756

Accrued retirement benefits for employees

18

—

—

Accrued retirement benefits for officers

290

254

2,165

Other long-term liabilities

596

585

4,984

11,711

11,245

95,733

28

51

438

Capital

2,991

2,991

25,469

Capital surplus

2,783

2,783

23,697

11,241

10,104

86,013

Variances in securities valuation

38

81

697

Currency exchange adjustment

(276)

129

1,098

(2)

2

(25)

16,776

16,087

136,951

¥28,516

¥27,385

$233,124

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Income taxes payable

Total Liabilities
MINORITY INTEREST
Minority interest

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Retained earnings

Treasury stock
Total shareholders’ equity
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
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Consolidated financial statements
Consolidated Statements of Income
Combi Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Years ended March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2005

2006

2006

¥30,149

¥28,281

$240,758

Cost of Sales

16,299

16,329

139,012

Gross Profit

13,850

11,952

101,745

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

12,209

12,261

104,379

1,640

(309)

(2,633)

144

250

2,131

Interest income

22

46

398

Dividend income

8

10

93

Commissions received

70

83

714

Exchange gain

—

64

548

Insurance-related income

15

—

—

Other income

28

44

376

349

320

2,730

76

78

665

151

137

1,172

Exchange losses

12

—

—

Lease payments

60

79

673

Other expenses

48

25

218

Extraordinary Income

60

43

368

Extraordinary Losses

115

305

2,598

1,381

(641)

(5,462)

Income tax, residential tax and enterprise tax

140

145

1,235

Income tax adjustments

(298)

64

549

26

16

143

(868)

$ (7,391)

Net Sales

Operating Income
Non-operating Income

Non-operating Expenses
Interest expenses
Sales discount

Income before Income Taxes

Minority interest gains
Net Income

¥ 1,513

¥

Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥117.47 as of March 31, 2006.
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Consolidated financial statements
Consolidated Statements of Capital Surplus and Retained Earnings
Combi Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Years ended March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2005

2006

2006

¥ 2,783

¥ 2,783

$23,697

2,783

2,783

23,697

10,101

11,241

95,697

1,513

—

—

1,513

—

—

373

1,137

9,683

359

269

2,292

Officers’ bonuses

13

—

—

Loss

—

868

7,391

¥11,241

¥10,104

$86,013

Capital Surplus
Capital surplus brought forward
Capital surplus carried forward

Retained Earnings
Retained earnings brought forward
Increases in retained earnings:
Net income increases in retained earnings
Decreases in retained earnings:
Cash dividends

Retained earnings carried forward

Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥117.47 as of March 31, 2006.
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Consolidated financial statements
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Combi Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Years ended March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2005

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Income before income taxes
Depreciation/amortization
Impairment loss
Decrease in allowance for doubtful receivables
Increase (decrease) in accrued bonuses to employees
Decrease in accrued retirement benefits for employees
Decrease in accrued retirement benefits for officers
Interest and dividend income
Interest expenses
Exchange loss
Profit from marketable securities
Write-down of investments in securities
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Loss on sale of fixed assets
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables
Increase in inventories
Decrease (increase) in other trade assets
Increase (decrease) in trade payables
Increase in other operating liabilities
Payment of bonuses to officers
Subtotal
Payment of income taxes
Income and other tax refunds
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest and dividend income received
Increase in time deposits
Decrease in time deposits
Proceeds from sale of securities
Payments for purchase of tangible fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets
Payments for purchase of intangible fixed assets
Payments for purchase of investment securities
Proceeds from sale of investment securities
Payments for other investments
Proceeds from return on other investments
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Payment of interest expenses
Increase in short-term bank loans
Decrease in short-term bank loans
Income from corporate bonds
Corporate bond redemption costs
Increase in treasury stock
Dividends paid
Net cash provided by financing activities
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period

2006

2006

¥1,381
620
—
(64)
47
(42)
(5)
(31)
76
1
(0)
2
13
(3)
(440)
(523)
455
195
24
(13)
1,694
(300)
62
1,456

¥ (641)
712
137
(68)
(168)
(18)
(36)
(57)
78
(79)
(2)
0
36
(18)
939
373
(39)
(590)
188
—
745
(176)
172
741

$ (5,462)
6,065
1,173
(586)
(1,433)
(154)
(306)
(491)
665
(677)
(24)
3
309
(153)
7,997
3,178
(333)
(5,030)
1,607
—
6,347
(1,505)
1,467
6,309

30
(1,656)
1,680
135
(498)
7
(215)
(60)
—
(199)
129
(645)

58
(1,311)
1,783
154
(587)
63
(81)
(69)
125
(66)
44
112

494
(11,166)
15,181
1,310
(4,998)
543
(696)
(591)
1,068
(568)
380
958

(58)
1,803
(1,913)
2,000
(1,000)
(0)
(361)
469
(29)
1,250
3,480
¥4,730

(77)
900
(896)
—
—
(0)
(270)
(345)
198
707
4,730
¥5,438

(662)
7,661
(7,627)
—
—
(4)
(2,305)
(2,938)
1,691
6,020
40,272
$46,293

Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥117.47 as of March 31, 2006.

28

Consolidated financial statements
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
BASIS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Scope of consolidation
(1) The Company has eight consolidated subsidiaries: Combi Asia Limited, Combi USA, Inc., Combi (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.,
Dong Guan Combi Stroller & Toys Co., Ltd., Nimgbo Combi Baby Goods Co., Ltd., Combi (Taiwan) Co., Ltd.,
CombiWith Corporation, and Combi Wellness Corporation
(2) Major non-consolidated subsidiary
COMBI KOREA CO., LTD.
Reason for removal from scope of consolidation:
The non-consolidated subsidiary is a small company and total assets, net sales, net income or loss (equity interest portion), and
retained earnings (equity interest portion) do not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated statements.
2. Application of equity method
(1) No non-consolidated subsidiaries or affiliates were subject to equity method accounting.
(2) The Company has two affiliates not subject to the equity method: COMBI KOREA CO., LTD. and BE BE DREAM LIMITED.
The above firms are not subject to the equity method because they have only minor impact on the Group’s net income and
consolidated retained earnings, etc., and have no significant influence on the Group’s financial results as a whole.
Due to the sales of all of the shares of Success Academy Corporation during the fiscal year under review, the company is no
longer an affiliate.
3. Matters concerning the fiscal periods of consolidated subsidiaries
The fiscal year of consolidated subsidiaries Combi Asia Limited, Combi USA, Inc., Combi (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., Dong Guan Combi
Stroller & Toys Co., Ltd., Ningbo Combi Baby Goods Co., Ltd. and Combi (Taiwan) Co., Ltd. end on December 31 each year. The
accounts of these subsidiaries have been consolidated using the financial statements as of this date, with necessary adjustments on
consolidation for important transactions occurring between the above date and the Company’s consolidated fiscal year-end. The
accounting closing date of CombiWith Corporation and Combi Wellness Corporation coincide with the Company’s consolidated
subsidiaries’ fiscal year-end.
4. Summary of significant accounting principles
(1) Valuation standards and methods for important assets
A. Securities
(a) Held-to-maturity debt securities: stated at amortized cost (straight-line method).
(b) Other securities:
Securities with market quotations: stated at fair value determined by the market value at settlement of account.
(Unrealized gains or losses are recorded in shareholders’ equity. Cost is determined by the moving-average method.)
Securities without market quotations: stated at cost determined mainly by the moving-average method.
B. Derivatives
Stated at fair value.
C. Inventories
Stated at cost determined mainly by the average cost method.
(2) Depreciation/amortization of important depreciable assets
A. Tangible fixed assets
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries compute depreciation/amortization on the declining-balance method,
while overseas consolidated subsidiaries use the straight-line method.
Depreciation/amortization expenses for buildings (other than fixtures) of the Company and domestic consolidated subsidiaries,
acquired on or after April 1, 1998, are computed using the straight-line method.
The period of depreciation/amortization for the main tangible fixed assets are as follows:
Buildings: 8-50 years
Machinery and equipment: 5-11 years
B. Intangible fixed assets
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries compute amortization on the straight-line method.
Amortization of software costs for internal use is computed using the straight-line method based on the useful life of 5 years.
(3) Accounting for allowances
A. Allowance for doubtful accounts
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries provide for losses on ordinary receivables using the historical default
rate and provide for losses on specific receivables where there is a possibility of default based on the estimated amount of
uncollectible receivables on an individual basis.
B. Accrued bonuses to employees
To provide for the payment of bonuses to employees, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries make provisions for the
amount of future payments incurred in the consolidated fiscal year.
C. Accrued retirement benefits for employees
To provide for employees’ retirement benefits, the Company records an amount that is recognized as arising at the end of the
period based on the estimated retirement benefit obligations and value of pension assets at the end of the fiscal year.
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Unrecognized actuarial differences are amortized using the straight-line method over a period no longer than the average remaining
service period for employees in service (10 years) at the time the liabilities are incurred. In this case, actuarial differences are amortized
from the following fiscal year this process has been applied.
D. Accrued retirement benefits for officers
To provide for the payment of retirement benefits to directors and executive officers, the Company records an amount to adequately
cover payments at the end of the period, in accordance with internal regulations.
(4) Standards for the conversion of important foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities into yen
Foreign currency denominated monetary receivables and payables are converted into Japanese yen at the exchange rate prevailing at the
end of the period, with exchange gains and losses recognized in the consolidated statements of income. The assets and liabilities of overseas subsidiaries are converted into Japanese yen at the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the fiscal period of the overseas subsidiaries, while revenue and expense accounts are converted at the average exchange rate during the fiscal year. Gains and losses are
included in the “currency exchange adjustment” account in Minority Shareholders’ Interest and Shareholders’ Equity.
(5) Accounting methods of important lease transactions
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries account for finance leases, other than those in which ownership of the leased
property is transferred to the lessee, in accordance with standards for ordinary operating leases.
(6) Hedge accounting
A. Hedge accounting
In principle, the Company uses deferral hedge accounting. When currency swaps, foreign currency option contracts and forward
exchange contracts fulfill certain requirements, their values for the accounting period are calculated as a proportion of the difference
between the current and forward rates over the period of the contract.
B. Hedging instruments, hedged items and hedging policy
The Company hedges its exposure to the risk of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and in accordance with the market risk
management regulations of the Company’s internal rules. With regard to the significant risk of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates on foreign currency denominated purchase transactions (including planned transactions), the Company principally hedges no more
than 90% of foreign currency transactions due for settlement within one year and no more than 70% of foreign currency transactions
due over one year.
The following are the hedging instruments and hedged items that are applied hedge accounting in the fiscal year concerned:
Hedging instruments: currency swaps, foreign currency option contracts and forward exchange contracts
Hedged items: foreign currency transactions (including planned transactions)
C.Method for measuring hedge effectiveness
In principle, the Company evaluates the effectiveness of its hedging activities by analyzing the ratio of accumulated gains or losses on
the hedging instruments and movement of cash flow, with the related hedged items and movement of cash flows from the commencement of the hedges. However, the hedge effectiveness is omitted in the case of forward exchange contracts, etc., where accounting is
applied.
(7) Accounting for consumption tax
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries account for consumption tax using the tax exclusion method.
5. Matters concerning the evaluation of assets and liabilities of consolidated subsidiaries
Assets and liabilities of consolidated subsidiaries are wholly evaluated at the prevailing market prices.
6. Matters concerning the depreciation of consolidated subsidiaries’ adjusted statements of income
There are no such items.
7. Matters concerning the treatment of appropriation of surplus accounts
Consolidated statements of capital surplus and retained earnings are prepared based on consolidated profit appropriations specified during
the consolidated fiscal year.
8. Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash flows
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash flows are composed of cash on hand, bank deposits able to be withdrawn
on demand, and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less which represent a minor risk of fluctuation in value.

CHANGES IN ITEMS MATERIAL TO THE PRESENTATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Millions of yen)

Previous fiscal year (ended March 31, 2005)

Current fiscal year (ended March 31, 2006)

Impairment accounting standards for fixed assets
Beginning with the fiscal year under review, fixed asset impairment
accounting standards (Opinion on Accounting Standards for Impairment
of Fixed Assets (Business Accounting Council, August 9, 2002)) and
Guidelines for Practical Application of Accounting Standards for
Impairment of Fixed Assets (No. 6, Guidelines for Practical Application of
Accounting Standards; Business Accounting Council, October 31, 2003)
have been adopted. As a result, loss before income tax increased by
¥137 million for the fiscal year under review.
In accordance with the revised rules for preparing consolidated financial
statements, impairment amounts are deducted directly from each asset class.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Millions of yen)

Previous fiscal year (ended March 31, 2005)

Current fiscal year (ended March 31, 2006)

1. Accumulated depreciation/amortization on tangible fixed assets 4,594
2. Assets pledged as collateral
Buildings and structures
984
Land
783
Total
Collateralized obligations
Bonds

1,767
1,000

3. Loan guarantees

26

4. Number of shares outstanding Common stock
5. Treasury stock

17,959,158

Common stock

6. Main selling, general and administrative expense items:
Freight-out
Advertising and promotion
Bonuses and allowances
Retirement benefit expenses
Provision for employees’ bonuses
Provision for officers’ retirement benefits
Depreciation/amortization
7. Research and development expenses to be included
in general and administrative expenses and
manufacturing costs incurred in the period
8. Main extraordinary income
Subsidies
Gains from carryback of doubtful accounts
Main extraordinary losses
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Expenses of autonomous product recall

9. Notes to consolidated statements of cash flows
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents at end of period
with cash items on balance sheet
Cash and deposits
Securities

10.

2
(3,424)

1,066
2,181
3,039
242
309
27
329

1,419
30
20
14
97

5,112
1,057

Total
Time deposits exceeding three months
Stock investment funds and bonds with redemption
periods exceeding three months

6,170
(1,285)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

4,730

(154)

1. Accumulated depreciation/amortization on tangible fixed assets 4,969
2. Assets pledged as collateral
Buildings and structures
914
Land
783
Total
Collateralized obligations
Bonds

1,698
1,000

3. Loan guarantees

25

4. Number of shares outstanding Common stock
5. Treasury stock

17,959,158

Common stock

2
(4,114)

6. Main selling, general and administrative expense items:
Freight-out
Advertising and promotion
Bonuses and allowances
Retirement benefit expenses
Provision for employees’ bonuses
Provision for officers’ retirement benefits
Provision to allowance for doubtful accounts
Depreciation/amortization

1,062
2,323
3,051
217
160
26
77
329

7. Research and development expenses to be included
in general and administrative expenses and
manufacturing costs incurred in the period

1,330

8. Main extraordinary income
Subsidies
Gain on sale of fixed assets
Reversal from accrued retirement benefits for officers
Main extraordinary losses
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Impairment loss
Product recall expenses
Water damage expenses
Loss on cancellation of agency contract
9. Notes to consolidated statements of cash flows
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents at end of period
with cash items on balance sheet
Cash on hand and in banks
Securities

15
18
9
45
137
55
33
30

5,424
933

Total
Time deposits exceeding three months
Stock investment funds and bonds with redemption
periods exceeding three months

6,358
(890)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

5,438

(30)

10. Impairment loss
During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, the following groups of
assets of the Group have been charged with impairment losses.
Location

Chiba,
Chiba Prefecture

Application

Category

Children photography Buildings, fixtures,
shop facilities
construction in progress,
software in progress,
and long-term advances

Kawaguchi Nursery Nursery facilities

Buildings and fixtures

When grouping assets, the Combi Group mainly categorizes its assets
based on minimum cash flow units by management accounting classifications.
The assets are then grouped according to those units. However, because
each of the nursery business and children’s photography shop business
facilities already are independent minimum cash flow units, they are
grouped by individual facility.
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(Millions of yen)

Current fiscal year (ended March 31, 2006)

Since children’s photography shop facilities are expected to post losses
in future, the book values of the asset groups that these facilities use have
been reduced to potential recovery values. The reduction (¥104 million) was
booked as an impairment loss under extraordinary loss. Of that amount,
¥26 million was for buildings, ¥11 million for fixtures, ¥20 million for construction in progress, ¥43 million for software in progress, and ¥1 million
for long-term advances.
At the Kawaguchi Nursery, business structure problems are expected to
produce business losses in future. Therefore, the book values of the asset
groups that these facilities use have been reduced to potential recovery
values. The reduction (¥33 million) was booked as an impairment loss
under extraordinary loss. Of that amount, ¥32 million was for buildings and
¥1 million was for fixtures.
Potential recovery values for asset groups are usually calculated using
utility value. However, when cash flows are expected to be minus in the
future, potential recovery value is evaluated as zero.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
1. Segment information by industry segment
The following tables show segment information by industry segment for fiscal years ended March 2005 and 2006.
Period

Baby Care
Products and Toys

Healthcare
Products

Total

Previous fiscal year ended March 31, 2005:
I. Net sales and operating income (loss)
Net sales
(1) Sales to external customers
(2) Intersegment sales/transfers

¥27,009
—

¥3,140
—

¥30,149
—

Total

27,009

3,140

Operating expenses

23,641

3,210

3,368

II. Total assets, depreciation/amortization and capital expenditure
Total assets
19,557
Depreciation/amortization
487
Capital expenditure
580

(Millions of yen)

Elimination
and Corporate

—
—

¥30,149
—

30,149

—

30,149

26,851

1,657

28,509

(70)

3,298

(1,657)

2,458
42
20

22,016
530
601

6,500
89
32

28,516
620
633

¥25,275
—

¥3,006
—

¥28,281
—

—
—

¥28,281
—

Total

25,275

3,006

28,281

—

28,281

Operating expenses

23,938

3,203

27,142

1,448

28,591

1,336

(197)

1,139

(1,448)

(309)

II. Total assets, depreciation/amortization and capital expenditure
Total assets
19,270
Depreciation/amortization
585
Operating loss
137
Capital expenditure
606

2,157
40
—
18

21,428
626
137
624

5,956
85
—
26

27,385
712
137
651

Operating income

Current fiscal year ended March 31, 2006:
I. Net sales and operating income (loss)
Net sales
(1) Sales to external customers
(2) Intersegment sales/transfers

Operating income

¥

Consolidated

¥

Notes: 1. Method for classifying industry segments and main products in each segment:
(1) Industry segments are classified according to the main products handled.
(2) Main products and business in each industry segment
Industry Segment

Main Products and Businesses

Baby Care Products and Toys

Baby care products, strollers, child car seats, nursing products, toys, childcare products, child wear, management of nursery
daycare centers, etc.

Health Care Products

Fitness machines, nursing care products, functional food products, etc.

2. Unallocatable expenses included in “elimination and corporate” under “operating expenses” for fiscal years ended March 2005 and 2006 are ¥1,657 million and ¥1,448
million, respectively, and mainly comprise expenses incurred in the Company’s general affairs and personnel, finance, management planning and other management
departments.
3. Corporate assets included in “elimination and corporate” under “total assets” amount to ¥6,509 million and ¥5,965 million, respectively, and mainly comprise the parent
company’s investment in surplus funds (cash on hand and in bank and securities), long-term investment funds (investment in securities) and assets of other management departments.
4. Depreciation/amortization and capital expenditure include long-term prepaid expenses and associated depreciation/amortization.
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2. Segment information by geographical area
The following tables show segment information by geographical area for fiscal years ended March 2005 and 2006.

(Millions of yen)

Total

Elimination
and Corporate

Consolidated

¥ 972
—

¥30,149
4,304

¥ —
(4,304)

¥30,149
—

Japan

Asia

¥27,750
245

¥1,426
4,059

Total

27,996

5,486

972

34,454

(4,304)

30,149

Operating expenses

25,085

4,835

1,242

31,162

(2,653)

28,509

2,910

651

(269)

3,292

(1,651)

1,640

¥18,620

¥4,581

¥1,172

¥24,373

¥4,143

¥28,516

¥25,219
182

¥1,532
4,786

¥1,529
—

¥28,281
4,968

¥ —
(4,968)

¥28,281
—

Total

25,402

6,318

1,529

33,250

(4,968)

28,281

Operating expenses

24,642

5,736

1,774

32,153

(3,561)

28,591

760

582

(244)

1,097

(1,407)

(309)

¥17,176

¥5,595

¥1,298

¥24,070

¥3,314

¥27,385

Previous fiscal year ended March 31, 2005:
I. Net sales and operating income (loss)
Net sales
(1) Sales to external customers
(2) Intersegment sales/transfers

Operating income
II. Total assets
Current fiscal year ended March 31, 2006:
I. Net sales and operating income (loss)
Net sales
(1) Sales to external customers
(2) Intersegment sales/transfers

Operating income
II. Total assets

North America

Notes: 1. Regions are classified according to geographical proximity.
2. The countries encompassed by geographic segments other than Japan are as follows:
Asia: China and Taiwan
North America: USA
3. Unallocatable expenses included in “elimination and corporate” under “operating expenses” for fiscal years ended March 2005 and 2006 are ¥1,657 million and
¥1,448 million, respectively, and mainly comprise expenses incurred in the Company’s general affairs and personnel, finance, management planning and other management departments.
4. Corporate “total assets” included as “eliminated” or “overall corporate accounting” for fiscal years ended March 2005 and 2006 are ¥6,509 million and ¥5,965 million,
respectively, and mainly comprise the Company’s investment in surplus funds (cash on hand and in bank and securities), long-term investment funds (investments in securities) and assets of other management departments.

3. Overseas sales (export sales and sales by overseas subsidiaries)
Consolidated previous fiscal year (April 1, 2004 to March 31, 2005)
Have not been presented, as they represent less than 10% of total net sales.
Consolidated current fiscal year (April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2006)
III. Overseas net sales
III. Consolidated net sales
III. Proportion of overseas sales in consolidated net sales

(Millions of yen)

Asia

North America

Other Regions

Total

¥1,608
—
5.7

¥1,529
—
5.4

¥ 72
—
0.3

¥ 3,210
28,281
11.4

Notes: 1. Regions are determined by geographical proximity.
2. Breakdown of countries in regions is as follows:
Asia: China, Taiwan
North America: United States
3. Overseas sales comprise sales of the parent company and subsidiaries outside Japan.

LEASE TRANSACTIONS
This information has been omitted in this report because it is disclosed on the Electronic Disclosure for Investors’ Network (EDINET).
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Fiscal year ended March 2006 (April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2006)

The parent company and principal corporate shareholders are as follows.

Classification

Name of
company

Address

Principal
PIP-TOKYO Chiyoda-ku,
corporate
Co., Ltd.
Tokyo
shareholders

Percentage
Relations
Capital or Industry segment of shareholder
Business
investments
or business
voting rights Interlocking
in capital
domains
(shares owned)
officers
relations

¥1,563
million

Manufacture and
(Shares
marketing of
owned)
medical hygiene
Direct
products, medical
appliances, house- ownership:
11.9%
hold goods, baby
care products, etc.

One
officer

Detail of
transactions

Marketing of
the Company’s Marketing
baby care
of products
products, toys,
and
health care
goods
products

Transaction
amount

¥1,576
million

Account
items

Balance
at the end of
the period

Accounts
receivable

¥280
million

Notes
receivable

¥661
million

Notes: 1. Consumption taxes are not included in the transaction amount but are included in the balance at the end of the period.
2. The Company’s policy to determine the terms/conditions for business transactions:
The prices and other terms of business transactions related to the marketing of the Company’s products are in accordance with similar terms of business transactions
with other related parties that have no association with the Company.
As such, the Company’s terms of business transactions are not inferior to those of other related parties.
3. The Company’s representative chairman of the Board, Yasuo Matsuura, serves as chairman of the Board of PIP-TOKYO Co., Ltd.

TAX EFFECT ACCOUNTING
(Millions of yen)

Previous fiscal year (ended March 31, 2005)

1. Breakdown of principal causes of deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets
Repudiation of provision to accrued retirement benefits
for officers
Non-deductible allowance for doubtful accounts
Non-deductible accrued bonuses to employees
Net loss carried forward
Repudiation of loss on revaluation of inventories
Tax deduction
Repudiation of provision to accrued retirement benefits
for employees
Other deferred tax assets
Subtotal
Valuation reserve
Total deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
Reserve fund for fixed asset reduction
Other deferred tax liabilities
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax assets

Current fiscal year (ended March 31, 2006)

117
31
152
760
24
108
7
101
1,303
(461)
842
(187)
(86)
(274)
568

2. Breakdown of principal causes for the difference between legal effective
tax rate and income taxes after tax effect accounting is applied
Legal effective tax rate
40.4%
(adjustments)
Nondeductible items such as entertainment expenses
0.5%
Residential tax on per capita basis
1.6%
Tax deduction
(8.5%)
Increase/decrease of valuation reserve
3.7%
Loss on revaluation of subsidiaries’ share and investments (49.5%)
Difference in applicable tax rate among
overseas subsidiaries
(11.6%)
Non-application of tax effect accounting to
net income (loss) of subsidiaries
12.7%
Others
(0.7%)
Income taxes rate after tax effect accounting is applied
(11.5%)
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1. Breakdown of principal causes of deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets
Repudiation of provision to accrued retirement benefits
for officers
Non-deductible allowance for doubtful accounts
Non-deductible accrued bonuses to employees
Net loss carried forward
Repudiation of loss on revaluation of inventories
Tax deduction
Impairment loss
Other deferred tax assets
Subtotal
Valuation reserve
Total deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
Reserve fund for fixed asset reduction
Other deferred tax liabilities
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax assets

102
26
84
1,286
46
71
54
85
1,758
(1,018)
740
(185)
(80)
(266)
474

2. Breakdown of principal causes for the difference between legal effective
tax rate and income taxes after tax effect accounting is applied
Not included because Company posted consolidated loss.

SECURITIES
Previous fiscal year (ended March 31, 2005)

1. Held-to-maturity securities with market value

(Millions of yen)

Type

Market value exceeds carrying amount

(1) Govermment bonds
(2) Corporate bonds

Market value is less than carrying amount

(1) Govermment bonds
(2) Corporate bonds

Carrying amount

Market value

Gross unrealized
gains (losses)

¥130
60

¥131
60

¥1
0

190

192

1

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

—

—

¥190

¥192

1

Acquisition cost

Carrying amount

Gross unrealized
gains (losses)

¥22
51

¥ 84
54

¥62
3

73

139

65

—
—

—
—

—
—

Subtotal

Subtotal
Total
2. Other securities with market quotations

(Millions of yen)

Type

Carrying amount exceeds acquisition cost

(1) Equity securities
(2) Corporate bonds
Subtotal

Carrying amount is less than acquisition cost

(1) Equity securities
(2) Corporate bonds
Subtotal

—

Total

73

3. Other securities without market quotations

Remarks

¥793
909

4. Future redemption values of other securities with maturities or held-to-maturity bonds

Bonds
(1) Government bonds
(2) Corporate bonds
Total

—
65

(Millions of yen)

Carrying amount

Other securities
(1) Unlisted equity securities
(2) Money management fund

—
¥139

(Millions of yen)

Within one year

Over one year but
within five years

Over five years but
within ten years

¥100
54

¥30
66

¥—
—

¥154

¥96

¥—
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Current fiscal year (ended March 31, 2006)
(Millions of yen)

1. Held-to-maturity securities with market value
Type

Market value exceeds carrying amount

(1) Govermment bonds
(2) Corporate bonds

Market value is less than carrying amount

(1) Govermment bonds
(2) Corporate bonds

Carrying amount

Market value

Gross unrealized
gains (losses)

¥ 29
60

¥ 30
60

¥ 0
0

90

90

0

50
—

49
—

(0)
—

Subtotal

Subtotal

50

49

(0)

¥140

¥140

¥ (0)

Acquisition cost

Carrying amount

Gross unrealized
gains (losses)

¥22
—

¥160
—

¥137
—

22

160

137

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

—

—

¥22

¥160

¥137

Total
2. Other securities with market quotations

(Millions of yen)

Type

Carrying amount exceeds acquisition cost

(1) Equity securities
(2) Corporate bonds

Carrying amount is less than acquisition cost

(1) Equity securities
(2) Corporate bonds

Subtotal

Subtotal
Total
3. Other securities without market quotations

(Millions of yen)

Carrying amount

Other securities (1) Unlisted equity securities
(2) Money management fund

Remarks

689
909
(Millions of yen)

4. Future redemption values of other securities with maturities or held-to-maturity bonds
Within one year

Bonds

Over one year but
within five years

Over five years but
within ten years

(1) Government bonds
(2) Corporate bonds

¥—
30

¥ 80
30

—
—

Total

¥30

¥110

—

DERIVATIVE TRANSACTIONS
This information has been omitted in this report because it is disclosed on the Electronic Disclosure for Investors’ Network (EDINET).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
1. Outline of the Company’s retirement benefit plans
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries have established comprehensive pension programs: the Employees’ Pension Fund
Program and the Approved Retirement Annuity System as defined-benefit plan. The Company may provide for premium severance pay as
employees’ retirement benefits. Please note that the Company has no retirement benefits plan for overseas consolidated subsidiaries.
2. Employees’ retirement benefit obligations
A.
B.
C.
D.
E.
F.
G.
H.

Employees’ retirement benefit obligations
Pension assets
Unreserved employees’ retirement benefit obligations (A + B)
Unrecognized difference realized from actuarial calculation
Unrecognized past employment obligations
Net amount recorded in consolidated balance sheets (C + D + E)
Prepaid pension cost
Accrued employees’ retirement benefits (F – G)

(Millions of yen)

2005

2006

¥(1,323)
1,074
(248)
230
—
(18)
—
¥ (18)

¥(1,369)
1,354
(15)
31
—
16
16
¥
—

Note: Pension assets calculated using contribution ratio applied to Employees’ Pension Fund Program is ¥2,829 million for the fiscal year ended March 2005 and ¥3,432 million for
the fiscal year ended March 2006.
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3. Employees’ retirement benefit costs

(Millions of yen)

2005

2006

A. Employment cost
B. Interest cost
C. Expected investment yield
D. Appropriation of actuarial difference as expense
E. Appropriation of past employment liabilities as expense

¥ 93
25
(23)
36
—

¥ 94
26
(26)
34
—

F. Employees’ retirement benefit cost (A + B + C + D + E)

¥132

¥128

Note: Besides the above employees’ benefit cost, the following amounts have been appropriated as employees’ retirement benefit costs: Employer’s contribution against
employees’ pension fund of ¥111 million for fiscal year ended March 2005 and ¥128 million for fiscal year ended March 2006, with premium severance pay of ¥31 million
for fiscal year ended March 2005.

4. Basis of calculating employees’ retirement benefit obligations

(Millions of yen)

A. Allocation of expected employees’ retirement benefits
B. Discount rate
C. Expected rate of return from investment
D. Appropriation period for past employment liabilities
E. Appropriation period for actuarial difference
(The amount allocated based on the
straight-line method for a certain
period within the average remaining
employment period for employees
at the start of each fiscal year has
been appropriated as expense
in the following fiscal year.

2005

2006

Flat-rate standard during the period
2.0%
2.5%
—
10 years

Same as on the left
2.0%
2.5%
—
Same as on the left

Same as on the left

STATUS OF PRODUCTION, ORDERS AND SALES
1. Production
2006
Industry Segment

Baby Care Products and Toys
Health Care Products
Total

Year–on–year comparison

¥ 9,953
1,414

(5.3)%
(3.5)%

¥11,368

(5.0)%

Notes: 1. Intersegment transactions are based on figures after intercompany transfers (Same holds hereinafter).
2. Figures above represent the cost of production.
3. The above amounts do not include consumption tax (Same holds hereinafter)

2. Orders
The Company does not perform order-made production.
3. Procured products
2006
Industry Segment

Baby Care Products and Toys
Health Care Products
Total

Year–on–year comparison

¥2,738
388

(2.7)%
(33.5)%

¥3,127

(8.0)%

Note: Figures above represent cost of procurement.

4. Sales
2006
Industry Segment

Baby Care Products and Toys
Health Care Products
Total

Year–on–year comparison

¥25,275
3,006

(6.4)%
(4.2)%

¥28,281

(6.2)%
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Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
Non-Consolidated Balance Sheets (Reference)
Combi Corporation

March 31, 2005 and 2006

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2005

2006

2006

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and deposits
Notes receivable
Accounts receivable
Securities
Merchandise
Products
Raw materials
Supplies
Advances
Prepaid expenses
Deferred tax assets
Accounts due
Accrued income taxes
Short-term loans to associated companies
Derivatives obligations
Others
Allowance for doubtful accounts

¥16,446
3,114
1,198
5,564
1,057
617
1,929
876
8
6
66
490
330
165
780
—
264
(23)

¥14,684
2,491
1,136
5,043
933
658
1,828
737
2
1
64
98
281
—
1,020
226
180
(22)

$125,003
21,206
9,675
42,930
7,949
5,603
15,566
6,280
25
15
547
840
2,400
—
8,683
1,932
1,534
(188)

Fixed Assets:
Tangible fixed assets:
Buildings
Structures
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Metal dies
Tool, furniture and fixtures
Land
Intangible fixed assets:
Software
Others
Investments and Others:
Investments in securities
Stocks of affiliated companies
Investments in partnerships
Investments in affiliated partnerships
Long-term loans receivable to affiliated companies
Reorganization claims
Long-term prepaid expenses
Deferred tax assets
Others
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Total Assets

7,493
4,742
1,520
90
137
5
36
166
2,786
540
523
16
2,210
838
316
0
98
649
153
0
18
331
(198)
¥23,940

7,811
4,585
1,448
78
116
4
22
173
2,740
467
455
12
2,758
933
316
0
—
975
15
1
423
351
(258)
¥22,496

66,501
39,032
12,328
665
995
38
195
1,477
23,332
3,981
3,876
104
23,486
7,950
2,692
6
—
8,300
131
10
3,602
2,989
(2,196)
$191,505

Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥117.47 as of March 31, 2006.
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Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Short-term bank loans
Payment due
Fees payable
Income taxes payable
Advance received
Deposits received
Accrued bonuses to employees
Deferred hedge net gain
Other current liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities:
Bonds
Accrued retirement benefits for employees
Accrued retirement benefits for officers
Deposit received for guarantees
Other long-term liabilities
Total Liabilities

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Capital:
Capital Surplus:
Additional paid-in capital
Retained Earnings:
Legal earnings reserve
Voluntary reserve
Fixed asset reduction reserve
Special depreciation reserve
General reserve
Unappropriated retained earnings
Variances on Securities Valuation:
Treasury Stock:
Total Shareholders’ Equity
Total Liabilities and Total Shareholders’ Equity

2005

2006

2006

¥ 5,947
2,168
1,429
710
1,053
170
—
8
13
289
—
104

¥ 5,506
1,892
1,188
743
1,118
151
23
2
15
145
226
—

$ 46,879
16,110
10,118
6,327
9,518
1,289
195
18
131
1,236
1,932
—

3,795
3,000
18
290
400
86
9,743

3,742
3,000
—
254
100
9,249

31,862
25,538
—
2,165
3,304
854
78,742

2,991
2,783
2,783
8,384
324
1,009
188
11
810
7,050
38
(2)
14,197
¥23,940

2,991
2,783
2,783
7,391
324
994
176
7
810
6,072
81
(2)
13,246
¥22,496

25,469
23,697
23,697
62,923
2,762
8,468
1,506
66
6,895
51,692
697
(25)
112,762
$191,505

388
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Non-consolidated financial statements
Non-Consolidated Statements of Income (Reference)
Combi Corporation

Years ended March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2005

2006

2006

¥24,833

¥22,243

$189,350

Cost of Sales

14,253

13,486

114,806

Gross Profit

10,579

8,756

74,543

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

9,397

9,190

78,234

Operating Income

1,182

(433)

(3,690)

Non-Operating Income

261

316

2,691

Non-Operating Expenses

238

206

1,754

Extraordinary Income

50

28

240

Extraordinary Losses

1,186

455

3,879

Income before Income Taxes

68

(751)

(6,393)

Provision for income tax, inhabitant tax and enterprise tax

11

14

124

Income taxes adjustment

(72)

(41)

(355)

130

(723)

(6,162)

7,100

6,885

58,619

179

89

764

¥ 7,050

¥ 6,072

$ 51,692

Net Sales

Net Income
Retained earnings brought forward
Interim dividends
Unappropriated retained earnings

Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥117.47 as of March 31, 2006.

40

Non-consolidated financial statements
Non-Consolidated Statements of Appropriation of Retained Earnings (Reference)
Combi Corporation

Years ended March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

Unappropriated retained earnings for the period

2005

2006

2006

¥7,050

¥6,072

$51,692

3

3

27

11

10

85

7,065

6,085

51,805

179

89

764

(10.00)

(5.00)

(0.04)

¥6,885

¥5,995

$51,041

Reversed voluntary reserve:
Reversed reserve for special depreciation/amortization
Reversed reserve fund for fixed asset reduction
Total
Appropriated earnings
Cash dividends
(per share in yen and U.S. dollars)
Retained earnings carried forward

Notes: 1. Treasury stock (fiscal year ended March 2006: 4,114 shares; fiscal year ended March 2005: 3,424 shares) has been excluded from
cash dividends.
2. Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥117.47 as of March 31, 2006.
3. Breakdown of dividends per share:
2005
Annual
dividend

Common stock

Interim
dividend

2006
End of
period

Annual
dividend

Interim
dividend

End of
period

Yen

Yen

Yen

Yen

Yen

Yen

20.00

10.00

10.00

10.00

5.00

5.00

20.00

10.00

10.00

10.00

5.00

5.00

—

—

—

—

—

—

(Breakdown)
Common dividend
Commemorative
dividend
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Footsteps of Combi Corporation
Sanshin Ltd., founded in 1957 as a manufacturer
and distributor of medical equipment and
medical support products, in 1961 acquired
Mimatsu Chemicals Ltd., a firm holding
manufacturing and processing technologies for
plastic products. The merged company began
producing nursing bottles, potties, and children’s
tableware under the brand name of Combi.
This was the birth of the Combi brand. In
1968, the firm renamed itself Combi Corporation
and started to extensively develop baby care
products. It was around this time, when simple
tin potties were the standard in the market, that
the Company introduced the Swan Potty by
effectively applying its plastic manufacturing
technology and instantly established the name
“Combi of baby care products” among
households with children.
Combi then moved on to actively expand its
product lineups to include high chairs, baby tubs,
and toys. The Company began production and
marketing of strollers in 1977 and subsequently
of child car seats in 1979 to position itself in the
market as an all-around manufacturer of baby
care products.
While retaining the baby-product business
as its core business, Combi develops and
conducts businesses aimed at serving not only
babies but all family members. Today, Combi is
expanding its business globally by operating
multiple manufacturing and marketing bases
abroad.

Swan Potty

Sandra Stroller
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Corporate History
Dec.

1957

Sanshin Limited was founded in Shinagawa-ku,
Tokyo, with ¥2 million capitalization with the
corporate objective of manufacturing medical
apparatus and supplements, and selling
pharmaceuticals.

Apr.

1961

Sanshin moved into the manufacture,
processing, and sale of plastics, acquiring
Mimatsu Chemicals Limited. New factory in
Tsurumi-ku, Yokohama City, began producing
feeding bottles, potties, and baby care tableware
under the brand name “Combi.”

Mar.

1968

Company name was changed to Combi
Corporation. Began production and sales of
Baby Rack high chairs.

Apr.

Head office was moved to Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo.

Apr.

1970

The new Yokohama Factory was constructed in
Tsurumi-ku. (Closed September, 1994)

Jul.

1972

A new factory with increased production and
warehousing facilities was in Iwatsuki City
(currently Saitama City), Saitama.

Feb.

1977

Began production and sales of Sandra Stroller.

May

1982

Combi Health Corporation was established.

Mar.

1984

Combi entered the exercise machines market.
Production of AEROBIKE began at the Saitama
Factory.

Jun.

1985

Began production and sales of Safety Seat DX to
penetrate the child car seat market in full scale.

Jul.

1989

US sales subsidiary Combi International
Corporation was established in Chicago.

Jul.

1991

The subsidiary Combi Asia Limited was
established in Hong Kong as a development,
production, and sales base.

Sep.

The Minami-Urawa Techno-Center was opened.

Oct.

Combi shares were registered with the Japan
Securities Dealers Association and listed on the
OTC market in Japan.

Jan.

1992

Combi Asia Limited began production at a new
factory situated in the special economic
development zone at Shenzhen in Guangdong
Province, China.

Apr.

1995

The company name of Combi Health Corporation
was changed to Combi Cha Cha Corporation.

Dec.

Combi (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., was established.

Feb.

1996

Head Office was moved to Taito-ku, Tokyo.

Mar.

Feb.

1997

The Biotechnology Laboratory was opened in
Oomiya City (currently Saitama City), Saitama.

Oct.

The Baby Label series of baby care tableware,
potties, etc. won the Good Design Award of the
Japan Industrial Design Promotion Organization.

Dec.

Combi Cha Cha Corporation made investment in
Success Academy Co., Ltd.

Jun.

2003

A factory of Dong Guan Combi Stroller & Toys
Co., Ltd. began production.

Dec.

1998

The Saitama Factory obtained ISO14001
certification.

May

1999

The Biotechnology Laboratory was moved to
Urawa City (currently Saitama City), Saitama.

Jan.

2004

Promoted to the First Section of the Tokyo Stock
Exchange.

Combi Cha Cha Corporation obtained the
goodwill of Samantha Co. Ltd.

Feb.

The US-based affiliate changed its corporate
name to Combi USA, Inc. and was moved to
South Carolina.

The Dong Guan Factory obtained ISO9002
certification.

Apr.

Combi Cha Cha Corporation changed its
corporate name to CombiWith Corporation.

Jul.

Began Combi Mini brand to enter the baby wear
market in full scale.

Oct.

Combi Mini baby wear Wrap Crotch obtained
patent.

Oct.

Began sales of functional food diet jelly Be.
Quarter.

Oct.

Established the Tsukuba Distribution Center.

Dec.

Combi Cha Cha Corporation obtained ISO14001
certification.

Oct.

Baby Soft Carrier Ninna Nanna F-180 received
the First Gold Prize of Good Design Award for a
baby product.

Dec.

Launch of Ribbon Casket, a new child wear
brand designed by celebrity Chiaki

Sep.
May

Sep.

Increased capitalization to ¥2,991.92 million by
public offering.

2000

2001

A sales subsidiary of Combi Asia Ltd., Combi
(Taiwan) Co., Ltd. was established in Taipei,
Taiwan.

Oct.

Combi Wellness Corporation was established.

Nov.

Combi Plaza Nakano Nursery School was
established by Combi Cha Cha Corporation.

Nov.

Combi Wellness Corporation agreed with Nautilus
Inc. on franchise in Japan.

Dec.

Ningbo Combi Baby Goods Co., Ltd. began
production of high chairs.

Mar.

2002

Oct.

2005

2005 Good Design Award winners included baby
chair Baby Keep Slim, diaper changing station
Baby Seat MP, baby toy Happy Palm, Melody
Merry+Play Gym soft baby carrier Ninna Nanna T95. Junior seat Buon Junior, and child and junior
seat Buon Kids.

Mar.

2006

Agreement signed with Konami Corporation to
sell Combi Wellness Corporation (transfer date
May 31, 2006)

Promoted to the Second Section of the Tokyo
Stock Exchange from the OTC market.

May
Apr.

The Functional Foods Division was launched to
expand the functional foods business.

Oct.

New logo was adopted based on the vision for
the Combi brand “to create a world where people
can enjoy and feel happy about baby care.”

Combi Mini baby wear Wrap Compact obtained
patent.
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Organization Chart
Corporate Planning Division

As of July 1, 2006

Accounting & Financing Division
Personnel & Administration Division
IT & Work Reform Office
Apparel Division
Juvenile Products Sales & Marketing Division
Internal Auditing
Department

Juvenile Products Sales Department
Marketing Department

Board of
Directors

Meeting of
Shareholders

Toys & Games Division
Chairman

President
Supply Chain Center
Product Development Division

Corporate
Auditors

Executive Board

Engineering Division
Quality Assurance Division
Functional Foods Division
Production Physical Distribution Division
Environmental Management Division
Customer Service Center
Soft Service Division

Main Subsidiaries
As of June 29, 2006

Domestic Subsidiaries

Overseas Subsidiaries

CombiWith Corporation

Combi USA, Inc.

Dong Guan Combi Stroller & Toys Co., Ltd.

Established:

May 26, 1982

Established:

Established:

Paid-in Capital:

¥30 million

Paid-in Capital: US$8.5 million

Paid-in Capital: HK$58.863 million

Ownership:

100% owned by Combi Corporation

July 24, 1989

April 14, 1994

Ownership:

100% owned by Combi Corporation

Ownership:

100% owned by Combi Asia Limited

President and CEO: Tomohiro Moriki

Chairman:

Shoji Shibata

Chairman:

Sei Kasai

Location:

Taito-ku, Tokyo

Location:

South Carolina, U.S.A.

Location:

Guangdong Province, China

URL:

http://www.combiwith.co.jp/

URL:

http://www.combi-intl.com/
Ningbo Combi Baby Goods Co., Ltd.

Combi Asia Limited

Established:

Established:

Paid-in Capital: US$2 million

July 9, 1991

June 16, 1994

Paid-in Capital: HK$15 million

Ownership:

100% owned by Combi Asia Limited

Ownership:

100% owned by Combi Corporation

Chairman:

Takayuki Fujieda

Chairman:

Sei Kasai

Location:

Zhe Jiang Province, China

Location:

Hong Kong, China
Combi (Taiwan) Co., Ltd.
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Combi (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Established:

Established:

Paid-in Capital: NT$20 million

December 30, 1995

September 12, 2001

Paid-in Capital: US$6.3 million

Ownership:

75% owned by Combi Asia Limited

Ownership:

100% owned by Combi Corporation

Chairman:

Yasuo Matsuura

Chairman:

Sei Kasai

Location:

Taipei, Taiwan

Location:

Shanghai, China

URL:

http://www.combi.com.tw/

Shareholder Information
As of March 31, 2006

Major Shareholders

Number of shares

PIP-TOKYO CO., LTD.

2,140

11.91

Shares outstanding

Matsuura Kousan Co., Ltd.

2,084

11.60

17,959,158

Matsuura Enterprise B.V.

660

3.67

P&M, Ltd.

574

3.19

Makoto Suzuki

400

2.22

Yasuo Matsuura

388

2.16

Number of shareholders

Noriko Matsushita

362

2.01

5,011

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd.
(Trust Account)

339

1.89

Ecel, Ltd.

333

1.85

The Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.

310

1.72

Number of shares issued by the Company
60,000,000

Number of shares constituting one unit
500

Percentage of

(Thousand) voting rights (%)

Shareholder Breakdown
Financial institutions
11.68％
Securities
companies
0.75％

Common Stock Price Range (Stock prices in the last five fiscal years)
(Yen)

1,500

1,000
Other corporations
30.95％
500
Individuals and
other shareholders
49.27％

Non-Japanese corporations
7.35％
0

FY2002

FY2003

FY2004

FY2005

FY2006

Note: The highs and lows of stock prices since March 3, 2003 are those of the First
Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange (TSE) and previously from March 20,
2002, are those of the Second Section of the TSE. Before March 20, 2002,
they are of the Japan Securities Dealers Association.
For fiscal 2004, the high of stock price is of the First Section of the TSE and
the low of stock price is of the Second Section of the TSE.

(Stock prices in the last 12 months)
1,000

(Yen)

800
600
400
200
2005

2006

Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar.
Note: The highs and lows of stock prices are those of the First Section of the Tokyo
Stock Exchange.
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Directors, Executive Officers, and Auditors

Corporate Profile

As of June 29, 2006

As of March 31, 2006

Chairman

Company Name:

Combi Corporation

Established:

December 2, 1957

Paid-in Capital:

¥2,991.92 million

Yasuo Matsuura

Number of Employees: 272 (1,396 on a consolidated basis)
President

Hiromasa Matsuura

Main Business:

Development, manufacture, sale, export,
and technical licensing of juvenile and
ancillary products, toys, exercise machines,
home health apparatus, and medical
devices.

Director & Executive Vice President

Main Transacting
Banks:

The Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
Mizuho Bank, Ltd.
Others

Offices:

Head Office
2-6-7, Motoasakusa, Taito-ku, Tokyo
111-0041
Tel. +81-3-5828-7666

Shoji Shibata

Director & Managing
Executive Officer

Michita Kinoshita

Tokyo Office
Nagoya Office

Director & Executive Officer

Sei Kasai

Osaka Office
Fukuoka Office
Minami-Urawa Techno-Center

Director (Outside director)

Noboru Kotani

Saitama Factory
Tsukuba Distribution Center
Functional Foods Office

Standing Auditor

Kazuhiko Ohfuku
Corporate Auditors

Toshio Kumon
Hideo Takasaki
Michiaki Tsukada
Executive Officers

Yoshichika Horino
Teruo Enomoto
Hideki Ohno
Hironobu Goshima
Minami-Urawa Techno-Center
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2-6-7, Motoasakusa, Taito-ku, Tokyo 111-0041, Japan
TEL: 81-3-5828-7666 FAX: 81-3-5828-7665
http://www.combi.co.jp/

This report was printed with attention to
minimizing environmental impact by using
recycled paper and ink manufactured
from soybean vegetable oil.

Printed in Japan

